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October 24,2022

His Excellency, Govcmor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

The Department of Energy respectfully requests authorization to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract
with Community Action Partnership of Straflbrd County. CVCilll77200X Dover, NH, in the amount of $7,003
for the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program, effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval through September 30, 2025. 100% Other Funds (NH DHHS).

Funds are available in the account below as follows for FY23 and are anticipated to be available in FY24
and FY25 upon the continued appropriation and availability of funds in the future operating budget, with
the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and Justified.

NH Department of Enerpv- Fuel A^isfancy FY 2023 FY2024 FV2n7S
02-52-52-520010-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $2,626 $3,502 $875

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (LIHEAP). The Senior Energy
Assistance Services (SEAS) Program makes home energy more affordable for households with members
who are sixty years of age or older, who are experiencing a home energy hardship, and who arc not
eligible for the state's Fuel Assistance Program under the current income limits. The CAAs determine
eligibility for the Fuel Assistance Program and are able to efficiently distribute these funds to households
in need that are not eligible for that program.

A federal grant under the Older Americans Act funds (Title IIIB) awarded to the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services (NH DHHS) Division of Elderly and Adult Services provides
funding for die Senior Energy Assistance Services Program. A Memorandum of Understanding for this
program was previously approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 23, 2022, Item #25.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

lespectfu I Iv Subm itted,

Jar»j Chicoine

Commissioner
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any tnfimnation Aat is private, confidential or {noprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

l.t State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Energy

1.2 State Agency Address
21 So. Fmii Street. Ste. 10

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Commtinliy Action Partnoship of Strafford County
i.4 Contractor Address

577 Central Avenue, Suite 10, PC Box 160, Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)516-8130

1.6 Account Number

02-S2-52-52M10-

33540000074-500587

52SEAS23

1.7 Completion Date
September 30,2025

1.8 Price Limitation

$7,003

1 .y Contracting Uttlcer for SiMe Agency
Eileen &niglowski, Fuel Assistance Prt^am Administrator

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-8317

I.II Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Condactm-Signaloiy
Betsey Andrews Parker, Executive Director

1.13 State Agency Signature

Q_ 1 / 0/^)
1.14 Name and Title ofState Agency Signatory
Jared Chicoine, Commissioner

k

1.15 Approval by the N.H. t)epaitnienl of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplkablt)

^ By- Directw, On:
1.16 Approval by tlwARtm^ General (Form, Substance and Execution) fi/appiieabU)

By: On: 11/4/2022

1.17 Approval die Governor and Executive Council (i/cpplieable)

OAC Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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I SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block LI
C'State"), engages contractor identified in block L3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and tnore particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pvt. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated fiinds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
tenninate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms ofpaymnu
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be rtte
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement ttiose
liquidated amounts required or permitted Ijy N.H. RSA 80:7
throu^ RSA 80;7-c or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total ofall payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take afTirmaiive action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofascertaining compliance with at! rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of diis
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expoise provide all personnel
necessary to perfonn the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the tciro of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporaticm with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
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or official, who is maleriaily involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block (.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event ofany
dispute concerning the inteipretaiion of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be ftnai for the State.

i EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ofdefault hereunder ("Event
of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 foilure to submit any report re<)uired hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occuirnice of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date ofthe notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accme to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the ContrKtor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to (he Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and'or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Evertt of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default No express failure to enforce any Event ofDefault shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defauh on the part of (he Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or

in part, by thirty (30) days wrincn notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the

Contracting O^lcer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination, develop and
submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during (he
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documertts, all whether
fin ished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
(he State purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

1L CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
offtcers,. employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any beneflts, workers' compensation or
other emolumoits provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this panigra^, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) me^er,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
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direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of die
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale ofall or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Slate.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unlessoiherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding die foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthe sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than S1,000,000 per occurrence and S2,000,000 aggregate

excess; and
14.12 special cause of loss coverage foim covering all property
subject to subpara^ph iO.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Ccmtracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificacefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9. or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewalfs) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exenqst
from, the requirements of N.H RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement- The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofofWorkers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which mi^t arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers" Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to Che parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 f«m (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A)shall control.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modi^'ing
provisions set forth in the anached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

2J. SEVERABILITY. In iheevencanyoftheprovisionsofthis
Agreement are held by a coun of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining provisicms of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, whid) may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1  On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor shall deliver to
the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a qualified independent auditor in
good standing with the state and federal government.

1.1 This audit shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of the 2 CFR 200,
Subject F- Audit Requirements.

1.2 This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contractor or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

1.3 The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years questioned costs along with an agency
response to the status of the prior years questioned costs. Copies of all 0MB letters written as
a result of audits shall be forwarded to NHDOE. The audit shall be forwarded to NHDOE
within one month of the time of receipt by the agency, accompanied by an action plan for
each finding or questioned cost.

2 The costs charged under this Agreement shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in CFR 200 Subpart E- Cost Principles.

3  Program and financial reccu'ds pertaining to this Agreement shall be retained by the agency for
3(thfee) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2-CFR 200.333 0
Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been resolved.

4 No portion of the funds paid under this Agreement may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional
Federal funds under any law of the United States, except is authorized under the law.

5  CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be submitted
to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7),

6 The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two(2) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and Executive Council.

7 Paragraph 4 of the General Provisiorts is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State,
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit B, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess

CAPCSEAS23 ^
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of appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under
this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number. Or any other
account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

8 Amend paragraph 9.2 of the General Provisions by deleting the sentence; "The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final
Report described in Exhibit B."

9 Amend paragraph 9 of the General Provisions by adding the following subparagraphs:

9.3 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement and
establishes a process to meet those needs.

9.4 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information
to support the Transition Plan, including but not limited to, any information or data requested by the State
related to the termination ofthe Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

9.5 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioncd to having services delivered by another entity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
transition Plan.

9.6 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
the State as described above.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBITS

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Senior Energy Assistance Services to qualified low-income individuals
and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the program in accordance
with the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures manual and the
other guidance as determined by the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NHDOE).

Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) will be defined to include the following categories:

1  Outreach, eligibility determination, and certification of SEAS iq}p(icants.

2  Payments directly to energy vendors:
A Reimbursement for goods and services delivered.

3  Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursement for goods or services.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satlsfectory performance ofthe services as determined by the State, the State agrees to
pay over to the Contractor die sum of $7,003.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "funds")

The following funds will be authorized:

$7,003.00 for Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS)

The dates for this contract arc upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2025.

Approval to obligate the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New Hampshire Department
of Energy to the Contractor. Reimbursements will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation
ofcash ne^ed is submitted to the State. Disbursement of these funds shall be in accordance with procedures
esttdilished by the State.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act ofl988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D;4I U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ct seq.). The January 31,1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this fonn
should send it to:

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department of Ene^,
21 So. Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of malntaming a drug-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace.

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of Che grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) abide by the terms of the statement; and

P37 Exhibits D thru H
SEAS2IOINHOASS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, C0Dt*d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) noiify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days aher such conviction.

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagreph (dX2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice ofsuch conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofDcer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agmcy
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2X with respect to any employee who is so convicted;

(1) T^ng appopriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other apprc^riate agency.

(g) Making a good faith enbn to contiime to maintain a drug-fm workplace through imfriementatirm
of paragr^hs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e). and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sit<<s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check Q if there «e workplaces on Hie that are not IdentiHed here.

hdVh i September 21.2022 to September 30,2025
"  * Period covered by this CertificationContractor Name

TniName and Title of Authorized Contractor R^resentative

j C i 2. 2-

Contractw itive Signature Dale

SEASIIOINHOASS

CFDA«»J.(M4
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT C

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
3I9ofPublicLaw 101-121,Qovcminem wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,and3l U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees lo have the Contractor's representanve, as identified in Sections 1. M and M 2 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTinCATiON REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
SEAS

Contract Period: Sqrtember 21, 2022 to September 30.2025

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge aiul belief that:

(1) No federal apprt^iriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or aticmptifig to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a mwnba of Congress in connection
with the awarding of ai^ federal contract, cwKinuation, renewal, amendment, or modification ofany
federal contract, gram, loan, or cooperative agrecrowU (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee ofany agency, a member of Conpess. an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this fWenil
contract, grant, loan, or cooperwive agreement (and by specific menlioQ sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Fonn LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-j.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documojt for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a matenal rq)re3mtation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
TOdc or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to ̂ ivil penalty of not less than SIO.OOO and not more than 5100.000 for each such failure.

/A^
Cocitractor Rqinsehtative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

/dUq /ax
Contractor Name Date

SEA$2tOINHOASS
P37 Exhibits D Ihni H

CFDAWJ.044 Page 3 Of7
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections l.ll and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH DOE's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective
primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
tfiis proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Exwutive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NHDOE, without modification, in aii lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen proper^';

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibiiity and
Voiuntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, sudi
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract),

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibiiity, and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covered transactions.•covered transactions.

tic ^
antractor Representative Sienature Contractor's ReorcContractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Tide

Ptr.hm -Brfntr^p rf /'yuAH
ContractorlName Date 'J

SEASZlOtNHOASS
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICAnON REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By siting and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Representative Sign^re Contractor's Representative Title

Contractor Name Date —7

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Uw 103-227, the "Pro-Children Act of 1994", smoking may not be permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
libraiy services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarantees, and contracts. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment.

The above language must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children's services and that
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to SI,000 per day.

Contractor Representative Signatwe- Contractor's Representative Title

/3^^ml71 U/l'/hj &-herAklf cf
ContractorName ~ ' Date J '
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EXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBUGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

STATE

First 9/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16

ExhU>H I

TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 538,220.00 5,646,370.00 82,200.00 357,200.00 6,623,990.00
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE o.oo 1.165,551.00 0.00 0.00 1.165.551.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 538,220.00 4,480,819.00 82,200.00 357,200.00 5,458,439.00

BMCA

First 9/30/2022 ADMIN FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL

CONTRACTED BUDGET 95,663.00 1,003,686.00 12,905.00 69,960.00 1,182,114.00
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 O.OO 0.00 0.00 0.00

THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207.112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95.663.00 796,474.00 12,905.00 69.960.00 975,002.00

SNHS

First 9/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,718,152.00 34,968.00 84,220.00 2,001,117.00

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,363,574.00 34,968.00 84,220.00 1,648,539.00

SOS

First9/30/2022 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 83,635.00 879,501.00 11,821.00 64,960.00 1,040.117.00

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 000 181,504.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 83,835.00 697,997.00 11,821.00 64,960.00 858,613.00

CAPSC

First 9/30/2022 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 54,676.00 573,593.00 7,003.00 65,110.00 690.382.00

EXPECTCD BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPIK}VAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 455,220.00 7,003.00 55,110.00 572,009.00

TCCA

First 9/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1.471.538.00 15,503.00 82,950.00 1.710.260.00

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 303.984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00

NOT AUTHOMZED TO OBUGATE 140,269.00 1,167,554.00 15,503.00 82,950.00 1.406,276.00

?37 ExbibiiA
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNT ABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual federal grants equal to or greater than 525,000 and awarded on or after October I, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first«tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the date of the award.

I n accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Ejceculive Compensation Information),
the New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (UEIM)
10) Total compensation and n^es of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually, and

b. Compensation inform^ion is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA-required data by the end of the month plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisicms agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Conb'actor's representative, as identified in Sections i.ll and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certiftcation;

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accounta^ity and Transparency Act.

P^hei\ AhJrr.-^-^
(Contractor Representative Sigtefilre) (Authorized Corluactor Representative Name & Title)

Contractor Initials

Date /
Page 1 or2
SEAS CFDA493.044



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity.Identifier (UEI) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1)80 percent or more ofyour annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S2S,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO ^ YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here.

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

^NO V YES

If the answer to #3 above b YES, stop here.

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Ntune: Amount: ___

Name: _____ Amount:,

Name: ____ Amount:

Name: _____ Amount:,

Name: Amount:.

or Initials /Contractor

Date
Page 2 of
SEAS CFDWii93.044



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIF[CATE

I, Williun M. Gvdoer, Secretary ofStale ofthe State of New Hampshire, do hseby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PARTNERSHIP OP STRAFFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 2S, 1965.1 further certify that ail fees and doeumenu required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this offtce is concerned.

Busiitess 1D.65SS3

Certificate Number: OOOS74S257

tl 9P

%

la.

O

%

IN TESTIMONY WHER£OF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be aflbied

the Seal ofthe State ofNew Hampshire,

this 4th day of April AD. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Alison Dorow hereby certify that:
(Nante of the elected Officer of the CoiporatioiVLLC connot be contracl signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secrelary/Officer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County.
'Coip'ii-jtiovLLC M.nmel

2. The foliowing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duty called and
held on October 19.2022_, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _Betsey Andrews Parker, CEO (may list more than one person)
iNaine and Title of Conliact Signatu y;

is duly authorized on behalf of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County to enter into contracts or
agreements with the State.

(Name of CoipciOlion.' LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote

3, 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of thts Certificate of Authority I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy tiie
ocsition(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
^its on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts wrth the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:
Signature of Elected Officer
Name:Alison Dorow

Title:Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE Dart Mtmnmr)

06/29/2022

THIS CERTIHCATE IS ISSUED AS AMATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER<S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: Iftha carttflcHa heldar It an ADDrTIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(lat) muat have ADDITIONAL INSURED provtalone or be endorted.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, eubjeet to the termeandcontttlona of the policy, certain pelleiei may require an endoraemenl Aatatementon
this certiflcate doet not confer righta to the certificate holder In Ifeu of auch endar»amant(t).

raooucin

CGI Iniuranee, Inc.

S Dartmouth Orrve

Auburn NH 03032

cojjTMi TertOavlt

<8T7)S62-8954 ISK.moI, 1866)674.2443

•ivwam TOavlt9CCIBuSinatalnsursnca.com

iMURtnt) nfPOKOMO covEuae NMCt

rwiUBHln' Kanovar Insuranca Company 22292

MMKO

CommunlyAction Partnanhlp of Stnfioid County, DBA Siraflord CAP

BTT CenlrNSLSlelO

Dover NH 03620

•NtiMAt: Ettlam Alliance 10724

iMUtllJlc PhUadelptHa Indemnity

INSUMAO:

INtURfJti:

imuMRt'

COVERAOES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 Mailer REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POttCIES Of INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMEDABOVE FOR THE POLICr PERIOO
INOCATEO NOTMTHSTANDINO ANY REQUtREMNT. TERM OR CONOfTION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHKH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAM. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCfUBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDmONS OF SUCH POLCES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
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To the Board of Directora of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate
Dover, New Hampshire

tNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County <a New Hampshire nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, whiidi
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31. 2020 and 2019,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for ttie years ttien
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibllttv for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United
States of America: W^is Includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' ResDonstbililv

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemmenf Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including tfie assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonabler>ess of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Community Action Partnership of Stratford County
and Affiliate as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the years then ended In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated finandal
statements as a whole. The ac«>mpanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit
of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the (xinsolidated financial statements as a v^ole.

Other ReportinQ Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 4,2021, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of SU^fford County's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report Is an Integral part of an audit performed In
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County's Internal control over finandal reporting and compliance.

Novemt>er 4.2021
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



COMMUNITY ACTtQM PARTMERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Security deposits
Proper^, net of accumulated depredation
Other noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

mo

$  1,316,311

2,266,903
36,400

228,233
36.316

3.686.165

5.326
6.273,321

27.500

5.306.147

$  9.192.312

2019

1.068,744

1,525,775
66,100
19,510
12.570

2.6&4.699

5,350
4.815.150

27.500

4.648,000

$  7.542,699

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demartd note payable
Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated abser)ces
Deferred revenue

Re^ndable advances

Paycheck Protection Program
Other current iiablltties

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

105,377
18,343

1,497,685
88,682
131,108
107,606
473.291

97,500
1.318

2.520.910

2.775,919

5.296,829

3,593,917
301.566

3.895.483

105,432

455,276
193.430
84,272

491.025

4.955

1,334.390

2,566.846

3.901.236

3,330,373
311.090

3.641.463

$  9.192.312 $ 7.542.699

Sea Notes to Financial Statements

3



COMMUNmr ACTION PARTMPRSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest

Fundralsing
Gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Child services

Community services

Energy assistance
Housir^
Weatherizatlon

Workforce development

Total program senrices

Supporting activities
Management and genial
Fundralsing

Total es^enses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

$ 11,412,231
1.544,770

15,255

451.985
630,948

103

64.423
2.000

14.121.715

265,181

14.386.896

4,470,403
2,258.463

2.053.659
2.920,930
1,347,740

92.113

13,153,308

694,695
75.349

14.123.352

263.544

3.330,373

$  3.593.917

With Donor

Restrictions

255,657

255,657

(265.181)

(9.524)

(9.524)

311.090

Total

$ 11,412,231
1,544,770

15,255
707,642
630,948

103

64,423
2.000

14.377.372

14.377.372

4,470,403
2,258.463

2.053.659
2,920.930
1.347.740

92.113

13.153.308

894.695
75.349

14.123.352

254,020

3.641.463

301,666 i 3.895.463

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFPQRD CQUMTY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donatior>s

Interest
Fundraising

Total revenues and suf^iort

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Child services

Community services
Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization
Workforce dev^opment

Total program services

Supporting activities
^r^ement and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE NONCASH
CONTRIBUTION

NONCASH CONTRIBUTION

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

$  8,385,228
2,026,319

9,385

492,204

699,583
335

25,334

11,638.388

585.065

12,223.453

4,467,961
1,084,934

2,382,868

310,583
1,894,603
134.487

10,275.636

834.730

93.752

11,204.118

With Donor

Restrictions

1,019,335

1.003,996

2,023,331

1,307.042

$  3,330.373

See Notes to Financial Statements

5

240,031

240,031

(585,065)

(345.034)

(345.034)

(345,034)

656,124

Total

$  6,385,228

2.026,319

9,385

732,235

699,583
335

25.334

11,878,419

11.878.419

4,467,961
1,084,934

2,382,668

310,583
1,894,803
134.487

10,275,636

834,730

93,752

11,204,118

674,301

1.003.996

1,678,297

1.963.166

311.090 i 3,641.463
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COMMUWrry ACTtOM PAPTNgRSHIP QF STRAFFORD COUMTY AMD AFFIHATg

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACIWITIES

Change In net assets $  254,020 $  1.678.297
Acyuslment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 182.600 175.101
Donated property end equipment - (1,003,996)
Gain on ̂ a sale of equipment (2.000) -

(Increase) decrease In assets:
Accounts recelv^le (743.128) (419,051)
Contrbutlons receivable 29.700 (4,300)
Tax credits receivable . 250.000

kiventory (206.723) (6,090)
Prepaid expenses (23.748) 45,696
Security deposits 24 -

Increase (decrease) In liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,042.409 46.317
Accrued payroll and related taxes (104.748) 31,864

Accrued compensated absences 46.636 (9.812)
Deferred revenue 107,606 •

Refendable advances (17.734) 75,690
Paycheck Protection Program 97.500 -

Other cunent IfabHIties (3.637) (74.466)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVmES 659.177 785.250

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment (640,971) (158,292)
Proceeds on sale of equipment 2.000 -

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITiES (638.971) (158.292)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVfTlES

Borrowings of long-term debt 485.181 -

Payments made on long-term debt (257.765) (247.644)
Net repayments on demand note payable (55) (60.000)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 227.361 (307.644)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 247,567 319,114

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Donated property and e<)utpment

1.068.744 749.630

$  1.316.311 S 1.066.744

130,165 160.999

$  1.003.996

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) Is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964, Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
Including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and professionalism.

Academy Street Family Housing, LLC (Academy Street) is a limited liability
company which Is consolidated because the Agency controls 100% of the voting
power of Academy Street. Academy Street leases property from the Agency
under a lease agreement for an annual rent amount of $1. The tease
commenced on April 21, 2020 and expires April 2045. Unless either party serves
the other with a 180 day written notice prior to the expiration of the Initial term, at
the end of the initial term, the lease shall be automatically extended for an
additional 25 year term. All significant intercompany Hems and transactions have
been eliminated from the basic financial statements.

In addition to the Agency's administrative office located in Dover, the Agency
maintains its outreach capacity by operating program offices In Farmington,
Milton. Rochester, Dover and Son^ersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal,
state, county and local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities,
foundation and charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business
donations, and donations from individuals. The Agency is govemed by a tripartite
board of directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit
and non-profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board Is
responsible for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the
causes and conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and
community outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The
Agency administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000
people annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable Impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.
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COMMUNITY ACTIOM PARTNERSHIP^OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continuedl

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accruai
basis of accounting In accordance w/ilh Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
{GAAP) of the United States

Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Agency to report Information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed resbictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
Imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
In nature; those restrictions will t>e met by actions of the ̂ ency or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as Increases in net assets v,^th
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statement of activities.

At December 31. 2020 and 2019, the Agency had net assets without donor and
with donor restrictions.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and
recognized as revenue in the period in ̂ ich the related services are performed
Of expenditures are incurred.

10



CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Icontinuedl

Contributions
All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted supi^rt, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is fuifilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

bonated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958. Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if ttie
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not rec^nized
as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Unless otherwise indicated, fair values of all reported assets and liabilities that
are financial instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts.

Inventory
Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed
value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15-40 years
Fumlture, equipment and machinery 3 -10 years
Vehicles 5 - 7 years

Depreciation expense aggregated $182,800 and $175,101 for the years ended
December 31,2020 and 2019, respectively.

11



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTMgRSHtP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOUDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCtES

fcontinuetP

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liability of $131,108 and $84,272 at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

Income Taxes

The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 5Q1(c)(3} of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes",
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, ar>d a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency's tax position taken on Its information rehjms for the
previous three tax years and has concluded that no additional provision for
income taxes is necessary in the Agency's financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instrun^ents with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
support and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of Oiese
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the

consideration the Agency expects to t}e entitled to in exchange for those
services. Cost Incurred to obtain a contract will be expensed as Incurred when
the amortization period is less than a year.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses durir^g the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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AMn AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

note 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
fcontlnuedl

Advertising Expenses

The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are Incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $27,725
and $12,558, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

As required ur^Jer FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
amounted to $2,156 and has been induded with interest expense in the
consolidated statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
financing costs have been induded as a reduction of the long term debt (See
Note 9).

In-klnd Donations . . ...
The Agency pays beiow-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental
space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an In-kind expense in
the accompanyir>g financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation
was determined to be $177,617 and $177,529 for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be recorded In accordance v/ith FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of
these services was determined to be $17,812 and $33,857 for the years ended
December 31.2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $415,835
and $17,665, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2020. For the year
ended December 31. 2019. the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $397,292 and $91,175, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been aBocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy c^ts have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line Hem. Such allocations have
been determined by management on an equitable basis.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Functional Allocation of Ewienses (Continued)

The expenses that are allocated Indude the following:

Expense

Salaries and t)enefits

Occupancy

Depreciation

All other expenses

Method of allocation

Time and effort

Square footage/revenues

Square footage

Approved indirect rate

New Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced
the most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also
requires expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of revenue from cash flows arising from contracts wth customers.
The Agency adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2020, the first day of
the Agency's fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption
did not result in a change to the accounting for any of the applicable revenue
streams: as such, no cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue
recognition policy above.

NOTE 2. PROPERTY

As of December 31,2020 and 2019, property consisted of the follovwng:

Land, buildings and improvements
Furniture, equipment and machinery
Vehicles

Total

Less accumulated defx'edatlon

Net property

2020

350.136

6.496.079
1.222.758

S 5.273.321

2019

$5,499,660 $5,039,871
646,283 600,526

327.137

5,967.534
1.152.384
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nOMMiiWrrY ACTION PARTNERgHIP^PF

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Agency's financial assets as of December 31, 2020
and 2019:

2020

$ 1.316.311
2.268,903

38.400

2019

$ 1,068,744
1,525,775

68.100

3,623,614 2.662,619

307.315 307.315

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable

Total fif\ancial assets

Less amounts not available to be used
within one year.

Board designated funds

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

The Agency's goat is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts.

NOTE 4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are wntten off through a
diarge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December 31,
2020 and 2019. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

NOTES. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE
Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by
donors but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible; accwdingly, no allowance for
contributions receivable has been recorded.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 5. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Total unconditional promises to give were as follows at December 31. 2020 and
2019:

2020 2019

Wittiln one year
in tviro to five years

34.307

4.093
$  38.057

30.043

$  98,409 $ gg.199

NOTE 6. TAX CREDIT PROGRAM

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority's Tax Credit
Program allows New Hampshire businesses to contribute to not-for-profit
community, housing and economic development projects and receive a 75%
New Hampshire state tax credit that can be applied against New Hampshire
business profits, business enterprise and insurance premium taxes. The Agency
did not recognize any revenue through this Tax Credit Program during the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. The total cumulative contribution revenue

raised to date is $250,000 as of December 31, 2020.

NOTE?. PLEDGED ASSETS

As described in Note 8, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Note 9, the
building of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency's mortgage note
payable agreement.

NOTE 8. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Agency has available a revolvir>g line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$250,000. The note is payable upon demand. Interest is stated at the prime rate
plus 1% which resulted in an interest rate of 4.25% and 5.75% at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. The note is collateralized by all the assets of the
Agency.
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COMMUNITY ACTION STRAFFORD COUNTY

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
POR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at December 31.2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:

4.90% mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings
Bank with interest only payments for 36 months
followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months for the first ten years. In 2028
principal and interest payments will adjust to
1.60% at>ove the highest five-year Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston interest rate. The mortgage
note payable Is collateralized by the building and
leases and rents of 577 Central Ave.

5.00% mortgage payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund of interest only payments
for 36 months followed by principal and interest
payments for 264 months. The mortgage note
payable is collateralized by the building and leases
and rents of 577 Central Ave.

Non-interest bearing note payable to the New
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority in annual
payments in the amount of 50% of annual surplus
cash through May 2060 at which time the
remaining balance is due. The note is
collateralized by certain real estate located at 22-
24 Academy Street.

Total long term debt before current portion of kmg
term debt and unamortized debt issuance costs
Current portion of long term debt
Unamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt

2020 2019

$ 1,929,978 $2,143,096

427,975 474,778

2,843,134 2,617.874

(18,343) -

f48.8721 151.028)

? 2.775.919 S 2.566.846
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OF STRAPFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT fcontlnued^

The schedule of maturities of long terni debt at December 31,2020 Is as follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2021 $  18,343
2022 75,657

2023 79,448

2024 83,430
2025 87,612

Thereafter 2.498.644

Total !t 2.843.134

NOTE 10. NET ASSETS

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of
the following:

2020 2019

Summer meals

Building campaign
Security deposits
Whole family
COVID related

Homeless outreach

Fuel assistance

Weatherization

Coordinated entry
Holiday baskets
Food pantry
Special events

Total

$ 44,438
44,712

25,846

111,100

5,091
55,902
14,477

11,914

27,891
51,584
163.738

33.995

3,434
8,147
3,985
2,521
3.861

^  $ g11.Q9Q

M December 31, 2020 and 2019, net assets without donor restrictions consisted
of the following;

2020 2019

Urxlesignated
Board designated

Total net assets without donor restrictions

18

$ 3,286,602 $ 3,023,058
307.315 307.315
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ANDAFFILtATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 11. LEASE COMMITMENTS

Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various leases. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, the annual lease/rent expense for the leased facilities was $143,308 and
$111,043, respectively. Certain equipment Is leased by the Agency under the
terms of various leases.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2021 $  63,001
2022 31,501

2023 1

2024 1

2025 1

Thereafter 10

Total s  94.515

NOTE 12. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantially
all employees. Employee contributions to the Plan are made at predetermined
rales elected by employees. Additionally, the Agency provides a matchir)g
contribution equal to 25% of the employee's contribution up to 5% of the
employee's compensation. Effective April 1, 2016, the Agency instituted an auto
enrollment feature martdatlng a minimum 1% employee contribution; however,
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enrollment. Employer matching
contributions for the years ended December 31. 2020 and 2019 totaled $23,170
and $28,408, respectively.

NOTE 13. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Agency receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, approximately
90% and 88%, respectively, of the Agency's total revenue was received from
federal and state governments, if a significant reduction in the level of sur^rt
were to occur, it would have a significant effect on the Agency's programs and
actMties.
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AND AFFILIATE

COUNTY

CONSOUOATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 14. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains its cash balances at several finandal institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to coliateralize the balances in excess of $250,000.

NOTE 15. CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use tfie funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws arKi regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made In compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31,2020 and 2019.

NOTE 16. NONCASH CONTRIBUTION

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Agency received land and
properly as a contribution. The contribution was recorded at the fair value of the
land and property, totaling $1,003,996. Additionally, the Agency received
$130,000 from the contributor, resulting in a total contribuOon of $1,133,996.

NOTE 17. RENTAL INCOME RECEIVABLE

Subsequent to December 31, 2020, Academy Street entered into four separate
rental agreements for use of their four apartments. Ttie rental agreements
commence in May of 2021 and expire during April of 2022. Monthly payments for
the agreements range from $1,168 to $1,394 and are due the first day of each
month.

The approximate future rental payments owed on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended

December 31

2021

2022

Total

Amount

$  42,800
21.400

S  64.200
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CONSOUDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 18. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM fPPP^ LOAN

During the year ended December 31, 2020 the Agency was able to secure a loan
from the Payroll Protection Program (PPP) offered under the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act The Agency received loan proceeds
In the amount of $97,500.

Subsequent to year end, on July 1, 2021, the Agency received notification of
forgiveness of the Agency's PPP loan in hjli. The Agency classified the loan as a
current liability in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position
as of December 31, 2020.

NOTE 19. OTHER MATTERS

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent Its
spread are affecting the Agency's business. The significance of the Impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the ̂ ency's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the ien^h of time that suc^
disruptions continue and. in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations
that might be imposed In response to the pandemic. COVID-19 also makes it
more challenging for management to estimate future performance of the Agency,
particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 20. RECLASSIFCATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's finandat statements,
which was taken from the December 31.2019 flnandal statements, to conform to
the current year presentation.

NOTE 21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to year end, the Agency acquired all of the assets and liabilities of
Dover Daycare Learning Center (the Center). Total assets and liabilities acquired
were approximately $369,000 and $264,000, respectively. Since the date of
acquisition, the ̂ ency has been running the operations of the Center. Prior to
December 31, 2020, the Agency received $107,606 from the Center relating to
the sale. This Is Included In deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated
statements of finandal position.
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AWn AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 202Q AND 2019

NOTE 20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS Icontinuedl
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence at>out conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
Including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events trough
November 4, 2021, the date the consolidated financial statements were available
for Issuance.
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131.108
16.000

107.806
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97.500
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2235.810

2.775.819

5.311.629

3.893,917

3.695.483

)1S20«

.USSSS)

(15.000)

S  108277
18.343

1.497.668
88.882
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107206
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3293.817
301.866
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See Netaa (o Financial Stalamena
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2020

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
ln>klnd donations

Interest

Fundraising
Gain on sale of equipment

Total revenues and support

PAPSC

$ 11.412,231
1,544,770

15,255

707,642

630,948

93

64,423
2,000

14,377.362

Academy

Street Family

Housing. LLC

10

10

ConeoHdated

$ 11,412,231
1,544,770

15,255

707,642
630,948

103

64,423

2,000

14,377,372

EXPENSES

Program services

Child services

Community services

Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Workforce development

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

4,470,403
2,258.463

2,063,659
2.917.792
1,347,740

92,113

13,150,170

694,695

75.349

14,120,214

257,148

3,641.463

$  3.898.611

3,138

3,138

3,136

(3.128)

4,470,403

2,258,463

2,063,659

2,920.930
1.347,740

92.113

13,153,308

694,695

75,349

14.123.352

254.020

3.641,463

{3.128) $ 3,895.483

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2020. The Information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County, it Is not intended to and does not present the fnancial position, changes
In net assets, or cash flows of the Agency.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain ty^s of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4. FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Sdiedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5. SUBRECIPIENTS

Community Action Par^ership of Strafford County had no subreclplents for the
year ended December 31.2020.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditir^g standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, and Uie related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated
November 4,2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Partnership of Strafford Count/s internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to detetmine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's interrtal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's intemai control.

A deficiency in intemai contro/ exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combinafion of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basts. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies. In Intemai control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited puipose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contrd
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not idenUfy any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

ComDilance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations. conb"acts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or oriier
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's Internal contrcrf or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering the
organization's Internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

November 4, 2021
Woifeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNgRSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To ttie Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the
types of (»mpiiance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020. Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to e^q^ress an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Titie 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary In the circumstances.

We believe ttiat our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Mator Federal Program

In our opinion. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County complied, in alt material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on internal control over comfMlance In accordance with
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecUveness of
Internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's Intemal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in intemal contrx^ over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompllance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency In intemal
control over compliance Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe
than a material weakness In internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies In intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of Intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other
purpose.

November 4,2021
Wotfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTMERSHtP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County were prepared In
accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are
reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516(a) are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major were: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program, CFDA 93.568, Community Services
Block Grant CFDA 93.569 and U.S. Department of the Treasury, Coronavirus Relief
Fund. CFDA 21.019.

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None
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Dover, NH 03820 Jean Miccolo, Treasurer
603-285-9460

Alison Dorow, Secretary

120MainSmt Hope Morrow Flynn

Farmington, NH 03S3S Petros Lazos

603-755-2883 Thomas Levasseur

Don Chick
ISOWakefield Street, Suite 117

Petros Lazos
Rochester, NK 03887

603-285-9461 Alii Morris

Cindy Brown
46Stacltpole Road Jason Thomas
Somersworth, NH 03878 Maureen Staples
603-817-5458

Tori Bird

Fanflv Resource Centers: Kathleen Sarles

577 Central Ave, Suite SO Mark Brave

Dover, NK 03820 Leah Crouser
603-435-2500 Nicki Gearwar

150 Wakefwid Street, Suite 117
Andrew Swanberry

Rochester. NH 03867 Mark Toussaint

603435-2500 Robert Harrington

Brylye Collins
Outreach Office: Robert Hinkel
577 Central Avenue, Suite 20

Dover, NH 03820

603435-2500

Food Pantrv:

577 Central Avenue, Suite 10

Dover, NH 0382O

603435-2SOO



Community Action Partnersbip of Strafibrd County

Name Job Title Salary % Paid ftom

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Lisa Garcia Fuel & Electric Manaser 52,000.00

Karen Carroll Lead Intake 45.760.00

Heidi Cioueh Lead Certifier 55.307.20

Jamie Swan Director of Strategic
Initiatives

76,627.20



Lisa Garcia

Personal Qualities
^ Focused and results-oriented; able to identify goals, prioritize and resolve.

Proactive and flexible in challenging and changing enviroiunents.
^ Proficient in Microsoft Office (including Word, Excel, Access, Power Point, and Outlook)

High energy and enthusiastic.
O Self-motivated and confident in making independent decisions.
O Highly dependable, and ethical.

Professlooai Accomplishments
Fuel and Electric Assistance Manager June 2622 - present
Community Action Partnership of StraRbrd County
Responsible for day the day-to-day operations and management of the Fuel and Electric Assistance Program,
including plaoniog, implementation, monitoring, and reporting. Responsible for creating and maintaining
procedures to successfully process and certify applications through excellent customer service and application
process times. Ensure that we are servicing our community in an effective maxmer scheduling outreach
activities to increase the visibility of our programs by going into the conununiry to enroll clients, offer
increased appointment times in office and creating flyers for locations throughout communities in Strafford
County. Oversee staff including schedules, reviews, and development Empower team to create trainings,
procedures, and documentation to get to best practices and encourage an environment of teamwork and
accountability. Keep accurate records to ensure pro^am monitoring guidelines are met. Creating relationships
with CAPSC community, partners, and vendors to better serve our clients. Work with other departments to
work towards a whole fonily approach. Participate in discussions pertaining to the Fuel and Electric Programs
and other programs that will be implemented in the future. Attend all trainings offered to continue learning.

BiUing Specialist Dec 2021-May 2022
Community Action Partncnhip of Strafford County Non-profit
Work witi) fuel vendors to manage and pay invoices for enrolled clients through the fiiel assistance program.
Manage all documentation for Vendor agreements and W-9 documents for landlords. Manage all
documentation for invoices and payments to adhere to State monitoring requirements. Manage CAP fuel
vendor mailbox to ensure ail billing issued are resolved in a timely manner. Manage Gift of Warmth program,
using multiple systems to complete payments. Send monthly unexpended reports to vendors to maximize
benefit usage. Send notification letters to clients, vendors, and landlords as clients are enrolled. Created
relationships with vendors, fiiel team members, clients and others who work here at CAP to learn what I can to
succeed in my role. Learning and using EmpowOr as a tool for research, uploading documents and retrieving
fuel inquiries for follow up. Created documentation ofjob processes to assist anyone if I am out of the office.
Assist with the Weatherization team in a billing capacity learning many other systems in a short period of time
to competency and reliability.

Indepeadest Contractor/Self Employed Feb 2019-Dec 2021
Personal Shopper - Instacart National Grocery Delivery Service
Using a mobile application to complete orders in a professional and timely manner, servicing customers with
knowledgeable and friendly engagnnent. Consistently meet deadlines ar^ quality goals for accuracy and
timeliness based on metrics set within the app and input from customers. Resolving customer complaints with
professionalism.

IBody Therapeutic Massage A Bodywork - co owner May 2020 - present
Small business owner managing all aspects of the business including customer service, marketing, product
inventory in studio and online, interviewing and hiring, payroll and working with clients to improve health.

Business Operations Coordinator October 2009 - May 2020



Global Lifestyle Brand

SlooiSble for daily oreaoization of Business Operations/Allocalions communications to support cuswmer
allocation, master iccount data, pricing conditions and daU analysts to r«o vmg

issues. Back up for all International accounts to include managing the order
correct and all customer requirements are met. Work closely with International partners for weekly meetings
for training and working out concerns as needed.
Senior Customer Service Specialist

fo. msnaging over 100 diverse wholesele eeeoonrs with rnuUi-rnillion-dollar reveriue. Back up
for^ of Cole Haan retail order m«.ogement to iuolude stores end onlrne mvenrory,
ream end aecouur buyers to manage all «ip=els of busluess from conln«

of the team. Initiated, organized and led team meetings as well as newsletters for micmal clients.

Professional Development Assistant - temporary staff February 2009 - October 2009
Measured Progress Nationally Recognized Standardized Testing Firm

background information, taking notes, contributing to discussion and following up on tasks.
Involved in company dodgeball and softball teams as well as the hiking club
Research & Analysis Assistant - temporary staff November 2008 - February 2009
Measured Progress. Edit and format post-test technical reports using Mitrosoft Word and Excel. Gather data fiora
multiple departments and manipulate it for placement into document tables.

. .. .. October 2008-November 2008
Quality Assurance Assistant - temporary staff

Measured Progress. Tested and reviewed on-line testing program for acadmic
e^Tdte^t and troubleshot in the computer application. Updated tracking sheet the problems that needed
to be addressed.

Education t, f

1996 Associate of Applied Scien« in Business, (with honors) Bistn^ck
1987 - 1989 Business Murse work Bismarck High School. ND
1987 High School Graduate

MUiuryndVoluuteer Service 2021el.cUou
Elected Selectmen, Dover. NH 2020
Election volunteer, Dover. NH 2009
United Way Day of Caring j 992 - 2000
USAimy RMcrves Parent^eacher Organization Fundraiser Chair
Home St School, Dover. NH rar«iv s



Karen A. Carroll

EDUCATION:

MedPro Ed ucational Services, Dover. NH
Nursing Assistant Training Program, June 2012

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Undeclared. 1983-1984

EXPERIENCE:

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH 2/2016 to Present
Intake Specialist for Fuel and Electrical Assistance
• Work directly with clients to process applications for Fuel & Electrical Assistance, Neighbor Helping

Neighbor, Security Deposit Program, and Special Needs Applications
•  Communicate with vendors via phone and email
•  Track prior year's emergency households via Excel spreadsheet and outreach to clients
•  Provide quarterly reports to management
"  Assist with training of newly hired intake personnel
• Maintain a list of local community resources within Strafford County and refer clients as appropriate

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover. NH 10/2015to2/2016
Seasonal Receptionist/Intake

• Assist with the compilation and assembly of fuel assistance applications
• Clerical duties such as filing, answering phones, and making ̂ pointments
•  Process food pantry application and distribute food

Self-Employed, Dover, NH 2014 to 9/2015
Senior Care

•  Responsible for the health and well-being of elderly family members
• Assist with ADLs

•  Provide transportation services, medication administration, nutritious meals and housekeeping services

Homemaker, Dover, NH 2002 to 10/2015
•  Provide personal care to children

•  Provide illness care to children, includ ing monitoring health conditions, administering medication as
prescribed and reporting changes in symptoms

•  Provide nutritious meals and housekeeping services for the household
' Manage schedules and transportation for a family of six
•  Provide emotional suppOliand intellectual stimulation to children
• Maintain financial records and create and implement household budget

Home Instead Senior Care, Portsmouth, NH 9/2012 to 7/2014
Caregiver

•  Provide companionship services to elderly adults in their homes
• Assist with ADLs

•  Provide transportation services for clients

Self-Employed, Dover. NH 2009to20l0;201!to2012
Childcare

•  Responsible for the health and well-being of children aged three months to eighteen months
•  Provide intellectual stimulation, meaningful playtime, meals and a safe envirorunent



Self-Employed, Dover, NH 2008 to 2010
Residential Cleaning Service

-  Clean and disinfect bathroom, kitchen, bedroom and living areas

Edgewood Centre, Portsmouth, NH 1998 to 2002
Office Assistant

■ Responsible for resident trust accounts
•  Daily scanning of medical supplies

•  Integration of improved computer based inventory system
•  Inventory of all medical equipment and medical supplies

•  Li^t receptionist duties

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE:

Girl Scout Leader 2000 to 2008

COMPUTER SKILLS:

' Basic knowledge of Microsoft Word and internet navigational skills

•  Empower Customer Relationship Management System
•  FAP/EAP System



Heidi
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Jamie Swan
Director of Strategic Initiatives

C) B J E c: T I V

Highly mo(ivated,d«lail-0'1entated. and »ducsted professbnsl possessing excellent communicafion,

organizational and analytical capabiilies. Passionate about all programsvrithin the Commun'ty Action Partnership

of Strafford County agency and have the skills to develop the systems and procedures to ensure all agency

mandates end standards are met

EMPLOYMENT

Commurity Action PaitnwsNp

of Strafford Coixity
577 CentiBi Ava. Suite 10

Dover. NH 03820

EXPERIENCE

5/J5/2f-pfBsent
Director of Straieglclnitiatlves • CAPSC

10/23/20-1/3021

Interim Director overseeing Chlldcare • CAPSC

2012-pmsent
HealVi and Nutrition Manager • CAPSC

2008-2012

Integrated Teacher • Head Start • CAPSC

2006-2007

Teacher ■ Head Start • CAPSC

implemented the A! Risk After School meals program wiSi Strafford

County. Oavetoped and maintained budget, hiring, menus, ordering,

monitoring, etc. During the first year and average of 2,500 meals were

served within two schools.

Oversees CAPSCs Summer Pood Service Program. Developed and
maintained budget will collaborating with community resources to bring
meals to children with Strafford County.

Oversee the Health and Nutrition mandates of approximalely 300 children.

Write, revise.and reviewpoliciea and procedures, program operating plan,
parent handbook, etc

Write and complete all grants and applications pertaining to health and
nutrition.

Emergency meal service during Cowd 19 pandemic. Coordinated witft five
local school districts to provide meal service wilhin 3 days of school
emergency closure. Served over 285,000 meals to children within Straffoid
Counlyfrom March to August
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Z5STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LOSG TERM SUFPORTS AND SERVICES
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February 15.2022

His Excellency, Govenror Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter Into a memorandum of understanding with the New Hampshire
Department of Energy {Vendor # 359894-B001), Concord, New Hampshire, in the amount of
$82,200 for Senior Energy Assistance Services, with the option to renew for up to six (6)
additional years, effective October 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever
Is later, through September 30, 2024. 50% Federal Funds. 50% General Funds.

Funds are available in the foUowing account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to t>e available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust
budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05.05-48-4B1010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS. ADM ON AGING
GRANTS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2023 040-584952
Transfer to Other

State Agency
48130306

$30,825

2024 049-584952
Transfer to Other

State Agency
48130306

$41,100

2025 049-584952
Transfer to Other

State Agency
46130306

$10,275

Total $82,200

th* IkparlmttU o{Htalth anct Huimui Struieti' Mtuion it lojoin mmmuniliti and famihet
Ut preuidingopporiunitiit for eilUtnt lo achitut htallh and indtptndtnet



EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to enter into a Memorandum of Understarxllng with the
New Hampshire Department of Energy (DOE) to provide energy assistance in the form of ftiel
oil, electricity, gas or wood to New Hampshire residents over sixty (60) years of age. The DOE
is the designated adminlsttator for the statewide Fuel Assistance Program and has the capacity
and expertise to serve the Department's Bureau of EWeriy ar>d Adult Services' population of
eligible older adults.

Approximately 152 households will be served annually from Oclober 1, 2022 to
September 30,2024.

The Senior Energy Assistance Program (SEAS) provides er^rgy assistance funds for
individuals, 60 years of age or older, who are over income under the low-income Home Energy
Assistance Program (LIHEAP). The goal is to allow indtvkJuals to t>e able to stay In their home.
This assistance wll be provided by the DOE to provide support throughout the State. Senior
Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) assists in the prevention of an er^ergy emergency that is
defined as conditions that pose serious threat to the healtft and safety of individuals from the
lack of adequate home energy.

The DOE'S performance will be measured by their ability to provide energy assistance to
senior housetolds In accordance with the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding as
evidenced by monthly invoices and reports submitted to the Department. In addition, by May
15tti of each State Fiscal Year, the DOE will report to the Department the outcome of client
feedback about the quality of sen/lces provided by the DOE.

As referenced in Section 2, Term, Subsection 2.2. of the attached agreement, the parties
have the option to extend the agreement for up to six (6) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available furKling, agreement of the parties, and Governor and
Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the assistance provided to
these senior households may be reduced to a level that could jeopardize their ability to remain
in their homes. These energy assistance services allow the elderly to maintain mawmum
Independence, health and quality of life, which supports the Department's mission for individuals
aged sixty (60) and over to remain in the community.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.044. FAIN #2101NHOASS.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

(7^
Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Deportment of HeoM ond Humon Services'Minion i$ tojoin eommunitiei end femiliee
in providing opportuiiiliet fiir eitiiene la achieve health and indepeiidenee.
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

AND

New Hampshire Department of Energy

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1. This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports and
Services. Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (DHHS), 129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301 and the New Hampshire Department of Energy (DOE). 21 South
Fruit Street. Suite, 10, Concord, NH 03301 (referred to as the "Parties").

1.2. The purpose of this MOU is to set forth the roles and responsibilities of the Parties,
The DHHS will provide statewide energy assistance through the Senior Energy
Assistance Services (SEAS) as part of the statewide Fuel Assistance Program (PAP)
administered by the DOE; and

1.2.1. The DOE is responsible for the disbursement of the DHHS energy
assistance funds by contracting with the five (5) Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) to carry out the duties of the FAP in New Hampshire
which are Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc.: Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.; Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.; Community Action Partnership of Strafford County; ar>d
Tii-County Community Action Program. Inc.; and

1.2.2. The goal of this service is to ensure New Hampshire residents, age sixty
(60) and older, are able to remain in their homes and communities and
to ensure that the services they receive assist them in remaining
indepervlent; and

1.3. In connection with the performance of this MOU. the Parties agree to comply v^th all
applicable laws and regulations.

2. TERM

2.1. Effective Date: This MOU is effective October 1, 2022 or upon Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later.

2.2. Duration: The duration of this MOU is from the Effective Date through September 30,
2024. The Parties may extend the MOU for up to six (6) years upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agrccmnnl of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

2.3. Modification: The Parties may modify this MOU by mutual written agreement at any
time, subject to appropriate Slate approval.

2.4. Termination: Either party may, at its sole discretion, terminate this MOU for any
reason, in whole or in part, by providing thirty (30) days written notice to the other
party. In the event of an early termination of this MOU for any other reason than the
completion of services, the DOE shall deliver to DHHS, not later than thirty (30) days
after the termination, a Tennination Report" describing in detail all activities performed
and the MOU funds used up to and including the date of termination.

(j6
MOU-2023-OLTSS-01-ENERG Page 10(6 >X>U-10

2/24/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

2.5. In the event the services and/or prescribed outcomes described within this MOU are
not met to the satisfaction of DHHS, DHHS reserves the right to immediately terminate
this Agreement upon written notice.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY (DOE)

3.1. The New Hampshire DOE agrees to;

3.1.1. Provide er>ergy assistance to eligible households. Require ali individuals ages
sixty (60) and older applying for energy assistance to complete a FAR
application. Ensure those households with members age sixty (60) and older
who are ineligible for benefits under regular FAR program guidelines are notified
by their CAA that they may be eligible for SEAS benefits. The DOE shall
determine eligibility for energy assistance as specified in The Older Americans
Act of 1965, as amended and through the FAR application process as set forth
in the Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual, in coordination with the CAAs.

3.1.2. Monitor all applications and payment procedures of the CAAs. The DOE shall
ensure the CAAs maintain records for each individual recipient and maintain
financial records.

3.2. Rules and Policies;

3.2.1. The DOE shall provide services according to the rules and policies of DOE's
Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) as part of the statewide Fuel
Assistance Program (FAP) arxJ DHHS which are incorporated by reference into
this MOU, and as specified in the State Plan on Aging and the Older Americans
Act of 1965 as amended, and in effect at any time during the MOU period as they
may be adopted or amended.

3.3. Reporting and Quality Assurance;

3.3.1. The DOE shall collect and report the following de-identified aggregate data to
DHHS on a monthly basis;

3.3.1.1. Number of clients served by town,

3.3.1.2. Number of units of service delivered to clients;

3.3.1.3. Monthly program amount by direct and indirect costs; and

3.3-1,4. Other data related to service provision as requested by DHHS.

3.3.2. The DOE shall report the data on a standard template provided by DHHS.

3.3 3. The DOE shall submit completed data reports to BEAS, Finance and Business
Operations, 129 Pleasant Street. Concord. Now Hampshire 03301-0387.

3.3.4. The DOE agrees to obtain client feedback as to the quality of services provided
by the CAAs and report the outcome to BEAS by May 15' ' of each year of the
MOU and to participate in any future Quality Assurance Measures adopted by
BEAS.

3.3.5. The DOE shall fon^^rd the information collected from the CAAs pertaining to
DHHS Exhibit J Certification regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance lo BEAS.

3.4. Performance Measure:

MOU Z023-ULrSS-01-ENERG »'a9«?olO MOU 10

7/74/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

To ensure the provision of SEAS home energy services, to assist in the prevention of
an energy emergency that is defined as a condition(s) that poses serious threat to the
health and safety of individuals from the lack of adequate home energy fuel, the DOE
shall ensure the CAAs follow up with the client after delivery of service to confirm the
energy emergency was prevented.

3.5. Consumer Appeal Process:

The DOE shall maintain an appeal and administrative fair hearing process as set forth
in DOE'S Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual, for individuals who have been denied
FAR services or question the FAP benefits provided.

3.6. Criminal Background and BEAS State Registry Checks:

The DOE shall require the CAAs to conduct criminal background checks for all
employees, applicants for employment, volunteers and applicants for volunteer
positions if those positions could possibly have client contact in the client's place of
restdencG.

3.7. The DOE shall require the CAAs to comply with RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VII. which
requires the submission of the name of a prospective employee who may have client
contact, for review against the BEAS State Registry, effective July 1. 2007.

3.8. The DOE shall require the CAAs to submit a detailed description of the language
assistance services they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to
ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of
the effective dale of the contract agreement between DOE and the CAA.

4. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

4.1. The DHHS agrees to;

4.1.1. Subject to the DOE'S compliance with the terms and conditions of this MOU.
reimburse the DOE at the rate and for up to the units of services provided to
efiglble individuals as follows in Table A: Service Rates and Units.

Table A; Services Rates and Units

Service State Fiscal Year

Rate Per

Unit

Number of Units

(Households)

Energy Assistance

2023 {July 1,2022 to

June 30. 2023) $270.38 114

Energy Assistance

2024 (July 1.2023 to

June 30.2024) $270.38 152

Energy Assistance

2025 (July 1,2024 to
September 30, 2025) $270,38 36

5. PAYMENT TERMS

MOU-2023-DLT5S-01 ENfRG Pago 3 of C UOU-1.0 [I
2/74/202?
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy

5.1. The maximum amount of funds available for reimbursement under this MOU from
DHHS to the DOE shall not exceed $30,825 in State Fiscal Year 2023 $41 100 In
Stale Fiscal Year 2024. and $10,275 In Slate Fiscal Year 2025.

5.2. The DOE shall submit an Invoice and supporting documents to DHHS no later than
the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. The DOE shall;

5.2.1. Ensure the invoice is on DOE's letterhead.

5.2.2. Ensure the invoice identifes the dates that services were provided, actual units
provided and total dollar amount for allowable costs incurred in the previous
month.

5.3. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices wfith supporting documentation may be assigned an
electronic signature and emailed to BEASInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be
mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5.4. DHHS shall make payment to the DOE within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice
and supporting documentation for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval of the
submitted Invoice.

5.5. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall fc>e due
to DHHS no later than forty (40) days after the MOU completion dale.

5.6. Funding for this service is provided by the Administration for Community Living Title
IIIB Supportive Services. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance ft CFDA 93.044.
Federal Award identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHOASS (Federal Funds) and Stale
General Funds. Account 05-095-48-481010-78720000-049-584902 (General Funds).

5.7. Notwithstanding any provision of Ihis MOU to the contrary, all obligations of DHHS
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds. DHHS shall not
be required to transfer funds from any other source in the event that funds from Federal
and General Funds are reduced or become unavailable.

5.8. The Parties may agree to changes limited to adjusting amounts within the price
limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class
lines through the Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties,
without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
juslifiod

6. IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES

6.1. Disputes arising under this MOU that cannot bo resolved between the agencies shall
be referred to the Now Hampshire Department of Justice for revi^ and resolution.

6.2. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with tho laws of the State of New
Hampshire.

6.3. The parties hereto do not intend to benofit any third parties and this MOU shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

MOU-202mTSS4)l-£NERG PBDe4of6 MOU-I.O

2/24/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
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$.4. In the event any of the provisions of this MOU are held to be contrary to any state or
federal law, the remaining provisions of this MOU will remain in full force and effect.

6.5. This MOU. which may be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire MOU and understandings between the
parties, and supersedes all prior MOU and understandings relating hereto.

6.6. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity, such immunity
being hereby specifically preserved.
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APPROVALS:

•OecuSigned by

15^110, SW«lAit(U 2/24/2022((i^
Christine Santaniello Date

Associate Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services

( W 2/24/2022
Jarecl'cfiicoTne Dale
Commissioner

NH Department of Energy

The preceding Memorandum of Understanding, having been reviewed by this office, Is
approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DegiiSigPbd by'

09^ 2/24/2022
><»7>U«494t<(g

Name: cuarino Date
Title: Attorney

The foregoing Memorandum of Understanding was approved by the following authority of the
Stale of Now Hampshire:

Name: Date

Title:
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